
          

 

 

COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.countylinedd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
23351 North River Road 

Alva, Florida 33920 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

November 8, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………......Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. July 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget..Page 6 

2. Consider Approval of Quit Claim Deed – Dean Property…………………………………..Page 9 

3. Discussion Regarding Crews Bank Line of Credit………………………………………….Page 57 

I. Manager’s Report 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………..Page 58 

J. Field Report……………………………………………………………………………………...Page 61 

K. Engineer’s Report 

L. Attorney’s Report 

M. Administrative Matters 

N. Board Members Comments 

O. Adjourn 

 



���������������	
 ������������������������������	����������

������������ ���������������������! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$./0123456�27�845�95:3;.<533�=7�>?@=05<�ABC�ADAAEFGHIJFKL55�M=/7@NCOFIJGP�QPRIM>S98T�LU9V�WXYU9YZV�WU[8XUM8�9>8UMV�>\�XVZSLYX�]>YXW�̂VV8U9Z�9>8UMV�U[�_VXV]T�ZÙV9�@4a@�@45�]=a<6�=b[/c5<d23=<3�e@45�f]=a<6fg�=b�M=/7@N�L275�W<a27ah5�W23@<2?@�e@45�fW23@<2?@fg�:211�4=16�a�X5h/1a<�]=a<6�̂55@27h�ef̂ 55@27hfg�=79=d5i05<�BC�ADAAC�a@�jDkDD�alil�27�@45�=bb2?53�=b�M=/7@N�L275�W<a27ah5�W23@<2?@�1=?a@56�a@�Ammnj�9=<@4�X2d5<�X=a6C�Y1daC\1=<26a�mmoADl�845�c/<c=35�=b�@45�X5h/1a<�]=a<6�̂55@27h�23�b=<�@45�]=a<6�@=�?=73265<�a7N�0/327533�:42?4�iaN�c<=c5<1N?=i5�05b=<5�2@l�Y�?=cN�=b�@45�ah576a�iaN�05�=0@a2756�b<=i�@45�W23@<2?@p3�:5032@5�e:::l?=/7@N127566l=<hg�=<�b<=i�@45W23@<2?@�̂a7ah5<C�[c5?2a1�W23@<2?@�[5<d2?53C�1=?a@56�a@�AnDjY�]/<73�X=a6C�.a1i�]5a?4�Za<6573C�\1=<26a�mmqjDl�845�̂55@27h�23=c57�@=�@45�c/012?�a76�:211�05�?=76/?@56�27�a??=<6a7?5�:2@4�@45�c<=d232=73�=b�\1=<26a�1a:�b=<�3c5?2a1�623@<2?@3l�845�̂55@27hiaN�05�?=7@27/56�a3�b=/76�75?533a<N�@=�a�@2i5�a76�c1a?5�3c5?2b256�=7�@45�<5?=<6l�845<5�iaN�05�=??a32=73�:457�=75�=<i=<5�[/c5<d23=<3�:211�ca<@2?2ca@5�0N�@515c4=75r�@45<5b=<5C�a�3c5as5<�@515c4=75�:211�05�c<5357@�a@�@45�i55@27h�1=?a@2=7�3=@4a@�[/c5<d23=<3�iaN�05�b/11N�27b=<i56�=b�@45�623?/332=73�@as27h�c1a?5l�./<3/a7@�@=�@45�Yi5<2?a73�:2@4�W23a0212@253�Y?@C�a7Nc5<3=7�<5t/2<27h�3c5?2a1�a??=ii=6a@2=7�@=�ca<@2?2ca@5�27�@423�i55@27h�23�a3s56�@=�a6d235�@45�W23@<2?@�>bb2?5�a@�15a3@�b=<@N;52h4@�eqBg�4=/<3�05b=<5�@45�i55@27h�0N�?=7@a?@27h�@45�W23@<2?@�̂a7ah5<�a@�nuj;umD;qoAA�a76v=<�@=11�b<55�a@�j;Bww;wmw;qoAAlUb�N=/�a<5�45a<27h�=<�3c55?4�2ica2<56C�c15a35�?=7@a?@�@45�\1=<26a�X51aN�[5<d2?5�a@�j;BDD;onn;BwwD�:4=�?a7�a26�N=/�27?=7@a?@27h�@45�W23@<2?@�>bb2?5l�Y�c5<3=7�:4=�65?2653�@=�acc5a1�a7N�65?232=7�ia65�a@�@423�̂55@27h�23�a6d2356�@4a@�c5<3=7�:2117556�a�<5?=<6�=b�@45�c<=?55627h3�a76�@4a@�a??=<627h1N�@45�c5<3=7�iaN�7556�@=�573/<5�@4a@�a�d5<0a@2i�<5?=<6�=b�@45c<=?55627h3�27�ia65C�27?1/627h�a7N�@53@2i=7N�=<�5d2657?5�/c=7�:42?4�@45�acc5a1�23�@=�05�0a356l�̂55@27h3�iaN�05?a7?51156�b<=i�@2i5�@=�@2i5�:2@4=/@�a6d5<@2356�7=@2?5l�xa@41557�Wa215N�̂57551N�W23@<2?@�̂a7ah5<C�M=/7@N�L275�W<a27ah5W23@<2?@�:::l?=/7@N127566l=<h�YWynqujDum�>?@�ABC�ADAA

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 13, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the County Line Drainage District (the “District”) was called to 
order at 10:04 a.m. at 23351 North River Road, Alva, Florida 33920. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on October 1, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as 
legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
President Joe Beale Present 
Vice President Paul Fabry Present 
Assistant Secretary Pat McKenna Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
 Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Terry Lewis Lewis, Longman & Walker 
District Engineer Kyle Grandusky GMAwater, LLC 
Field Consultant Randy Sebring  

 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Meneely swore in Joe Beale for a new term. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The April 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously approving April 13, 
2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Fort Myers 
News-Press on June 16, 2022, and June 23, 2022, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2022-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT ADOPTING A 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2022-02, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2022-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2022-03, amended to reflect changing the July 12, 2023, meeting to June 28, 2023. 
 
 2.  Consider Amendment to License for Water Resources Project 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Lewis went over the amendment.   Mr. Grandusky reviewed the cover letter, adding another component to 
the project which would provide extra capacity seasonally.  A discussion ensued.  Mr. Fabry wanted to ensure 
the water would benefit growers and stated that the groves come first and take precedence.  The water project 
submitted to groves cannot negatively impact the District.  Mr. Fabry asked if it could be shut down, if needed, 
or not working as intended.  Mr. Lewis confirmed they could.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously approving the 
Amendment to the License for Water Resources Project, as presented.  
 
 3.  Accept and Receive Engineer’s Annual Report 
 
Mr. Grandusky went over the report. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting and 
receiving the Engineer’s Annual Report, as presented. 
 
J. MANAGER’S REPORT  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Meneely went over financial report, noting that the amended budget would be presented at the meeting 
scheduled for October 12, 2022. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting the Financial 
Report, as presented. 
 
K. FIELD REPORT 
 
Mr. Sebring reported that 2 culverts had been delivered, but still needed to be installed.  He also noted that 
Dean had just completed the weed control. 
 
L. ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Grandusky advised that the ditch construction in Hendry County had not yet started, but he will stay in 
communication on the matter.  He noted that there should be no impact to the District.  
 
M. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Lewis suggested a motion approving the same officers and consultants of the District. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. Beale and passed unanimously approving the same 
officers and consultants of the District.   
 
N. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that the next meeting was scheduled for October 12, 2022. 
  
O. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
P. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. McKenna, seconded by 
Mr. Fabry, and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 10:53 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice President 
 
 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 
BUDGET, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County Line Drainage District (hereinafter 
the “District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments upon 
the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an amended final 
fiscal year 2021/2022 budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Operating Fund and Debt Service Fund Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2021/2022 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 12th day of October, 2022. 
 

 

ATTEST: COUNTY LINE  
 DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 6



County Line 
Drainage District

Amended Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2021/2022

October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



From: Tori Shamy <tshamy@sdsinc.org> 
Date: Oct 14, 2022 at 10:34 AM 
To: Kathleen Meneely <kmeneely@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: Jeff Walker <jwalker@sdsinc.org>, Tricia Lascasas <tlascasas@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Crews Bank Lines of Credit for ECDD and CLDD 

Kathleen, 
  
The line of credit for $100,000 with Crews Bank and Trust for ECDD and CLDD have matured.  To get new 
lines of credit established, I need a resolution approved in the next meeting that sates something to the 
nature of: 
  
They would like to re‐establish a line of credit in the amount of $100,00 with Crews Bank and Trust and 
list who the signers will be for the line of credit.   
  
  
We also need an address for the actual place of business for each district.  It does not necessarily need 
to be a mailing address, but where the actual business of each district takes place.   
  
Once this is completed, I will work with Crews to get the paperwork completed.  When I spoke with the 
bank, they were able to look back as far as 2015 and see that the line of credit has not been used since 
at least then.  The question that I ask, is it necessary to reestablish these lines of credit.   
  
Thank you. 
  
  
  
Tori Shamy 
Special District Services 
2501 A Burns Rd 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410 
561‐630‐4922 
 

Page 57



County Line
Drainage District

 Financial Report For
September 2022

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
FIELD REPORT 

FOR THE MONTHS OF JULY THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

 
 

1) CULVERTS REMOVED/INSTALLED 
 

a) The 2 culverts have been installed in Section 14. 
 

2) CANALS CLEANED 
 
       a)   None. 
 
 

3) WEED CONTROL 
 

a) Dean finished spraying ditches & canals. 
 

4) ROADS MAINTENANCE 
 

a) None. 
 

5) METERS/PUMPS 
 

a) Read all meters. 
 

6) PROJECTED OR SPECIAL PROJECT  
 
      a)  A culvert in Section 1 has collapsed, and it’s on order.  When delivered, we will 
install it. 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61


	County Line Drainage District - October 12, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget
	Consider Approval of Quit Claim Deed – Dean Property
	Discussion Regarding Crews Bank Line of Credit
	Financial Report
	Field Report




